Agenda Iltem 3

All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel. To find out the date of the next
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee.

HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES AND OLDER PEOPLE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
PANEL

1 NOVEMBER 2022

(7.15 pm - 9.00 pm)

PRESENT: Councillors Councillor Agatha Mary Akyigyina (in the Chair),
Councillor Jenifer Gould, Councillor Max Austin,
Councillor Caroline Charles, Councillor Eleanor Cox,
Councillor Martin Whelton, Di Griffin and
Councillor Matthew Willis

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Sally Kenny (Cabinet Member for Education and
Lifelong Learning)

Mike Procter, Director of Transformation — Merton and
Wandsworth, NHS South West London CCG, Melody Woolcock,
Senior Transformation Manager, Merton and Wandsworth, NHS
South West London CCG, Stella Akintan (Scrutiny Officer), Keith
Burns (The Interim Assistant Director, Commissioning), Julia
Groom and John Morgan (Interim Director, Community &
Housing)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Simon McGrath and Councillor
Matthew Willis attended as a substitute.

2 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST (Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations of pecinary interests

3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda ltem 3)

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true and accurate record.
4 MERTON WINTER RESILIENCE PLAN (Agenda ltem 4)

The Senior Transformation Manager gave an overview of the report stating it will be a
challenge to manage the pressures but there is a plan in place.

A Panel member asked about plans for potential staff shortages and iliness, The
Director of Transformation said the potential industrial action is new to the NHS and
they will use same staff resilience plans. Staff illness is accounted for on the staff rota
and adjusted to make additional provision during the winter period.

Pager 1


http://www.merton.gov.uk/committee

Panel members asked if people are people taking up vaccinations and how the
enhanced primary care hub is supporting this. Also, if the winter plan extends to care
homes to relieve capacity and prevent overflow at hospitals.

The Director of Transformation said there has been higher levels of staff absence
due to covid and staff resilience measures remain the same. Care homes are
included in the winter planning and measures in place to ensure staff and residents
are vaccinated. Patients who have covid and a risk of infection but fit to leave hospital
will go to temporary alternative discharge destination in the interim.

The Senior Transformation Manager said enhanced primary care hubs run an 8am to
8pm service, and urgent care centre at St Georges. These can all relieve the
pressure on accident and emergency services.

A Panel member asked about pick-up times for ambulances, it was reported that
there is real time information for ambulances across London to move pressure
around the system and can divert some ambulances. Biggest wait for ambulances is
when they are occupied with a previous call.

A panel member asked if they have been able to recruit enough carers and district
nurses, The Director of Transformation said when there is pressure in the community
services they use staff flexibly and move them into other areas of the system.

The Interim Director of Community and Housing highlighted that the council has a
strong re-ablement team who provide a care package for patients who go home so
they can work toward the level of function they had before. Extra resources have
been put into reablement providing additional capacity during the winter period.

5 DAY OPPORTUNITIES PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 5)

The Integrated Head of Learning Disability gave an overview of the report.

The Chair invited a local resident to address the panel. They gave an overview of
their concerns stating that; the provision of suitable day opportunities can make a
significant difference for those with learning disabilities, day centre activities can be
particularly valuable both to the client and their carer. They welcome plans to expand
provision to more sites and younger clients, some people benefit from travel training
while others cannot manage it. Transport to new facilities is essential as some carers
concerned that they will have additional responsibility e.g. arranging transport will be
burdensome, even through the direct payment system. The council needs to ensure
the system is not harder for carers and there is sufficient funding.

A panel member said we should not rely on voluntary services and asked what the
impact of the saving will be. The integrated Head of Learning Disability said they are
working closely with voluntary organisations such as Mencap and will provide
navigators to support carers to manage they process. However, savings will need to
be made.

Page 2



A panel member asked where a community hub will be located and the governance
structure in place. The integrated Head of Learning Disability said there will be a
range of options for people to choose from on a sessional basis with a menu of
activities.

A panel member asked if skills and new training will be linked to the workplace. The
integrated Head of Learning Disability said they are looking at employability which
looks at supporting younger people with autism, but they will need support to get into
employment.

A panel member asked if there is a shortage of independent living options, the
Integrated Head of Learning Disability said there is good availability of service but
would like more in the Merton area.

A panel member asked if the team are aware of what the young people want. The
integrated Head of Learning Disability said a wide range of consultation had been
conducted with young people such as Kids First, Adults First, Merton Mencap and
carers and young people in transition and send services. They would also like more
young people on reference groups.

The Interim Director of Community and Housing said they have commissioned an
external specialist agency who spoke to over 400 people to gauge their views of
young people and older people across the borough with moderate to complex
learning disabilities.

The Interim Director thanked the local resident for attending and sought to provide
reassurance to panel members that there is a new purpose-built day centre at Leyton
Road, for people with moderate learning disabilities. The department also has a
desire to re-build a current day centre into a state-of-the-art day centre for those with
the most complex needs, alongside supported living. The current day centres are well
managed and valued by the users, however pre-pandemic it was found that this
model is limited and old fashioned. During the pandemic, small groups of clients were
taken out into the community to participate in a range of activities and this approach
was very successful. This model will be looked at alongside all the other options. The
council want to build a better system to provide opportunities for people with learning
disabilities in their everyday lives such as through employment and volunteering.

6 ADULT SOCIAL CARE REFORM (Agenda Item 6)

The Interim Assistant Director, Commissioning gave an overview of the report,
highlighting the timetable may change due to the legislative calendar.

A panel member asked about the future of care as people would prefer to receive
care at home, The Interim Assistant Director, Commissioning said there is a shift
from residential to a supportive living model.

A panel member asked about the opportunities in digitalisation and social care the
steps being taken to reap the benefits of a digitalised provision. The Interim Assistant

Page 3



Director, Commissioning said they are considering options for online self-
assessment. Some clients may have family members who can support them with
digital solutions.

A panel member said they are concerned about increased administration in providing
assessment and data. The Interim Assistant Director, Commissioning said the council
have the knowledge and expertise but will need the resource including social workers
and people to do financial assessments.

7 WORK PROGRAMME (Agenda Item 7)

A panel asked for the report on suicide to address why Merton has a higher rate of
suicide for women.

The agenda for the 10" January was agreed

Page 4



	3 Minutes of the previous meeting

